1988

John Call and Clark Jenkins v. City of West Jordan : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

II. STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(h) provides the Utah Court of Appeals Jurisdiction of this appeal.

III. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether the lower court erred in refusing to enter a judgment on plaintiff's civil rights claim, effectively dismissing plaintiffs' civil rights claim.

2. Whether the lower court erred in failing to try plaintiffs' civil right claim.

3. Whether the lower court erred in refusing to award plaintiffs' attorney fees.

4. Whether the lower court erred in refusing to award plaintiffs the costs paid by plaintiffs to a court-appointed master.

5. Whether the lower court erred in failing to award plaintiffs the costs incurred in auditing the defendant's records.

6. Whether the lower court erred in failing to join other subdividers as party plaintiffs.

IV. CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTES

§ 1983. Civil Action for Deprivation of Rights

Every person who, under color of any statute, ordinance, regulation, custom, or usage, of any State or Territory or the District of Columbia, subjects, or causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within the jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, suit in equity, or other proper proceeding for redress. For the purposes of this section, any Act of Congress applicable, exclusively to the District of Columbia shall be considered to be a statute of the District of Columbia.

§ 1988. Proceedings in Vindication of Civil Rights

The jurisdiction in civil and criminal matters conferred on the district courts by the provisions of this Title, and of Title "CIVIL RIGHTS," and of Title "CRIMES," for the protection of all persons in the United States in their civil rights, and for their vindication, shall be exercised and enforced in conformity with the laws of the United States, so far as such laws are suitable to carry the

same into effect; but in all cases where they are not adapted to the object, or are deficient in the provisions necessary to furnish suitable remedies and punish offenses against law, the common law, as modified and changed by the constitution and statutes of the State wherein the court having jurisdiction of such civil or criminal cause is held, so far as the same is not inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the United States, shall be extended to and govern the said courts in the trial and disposition of the cause, and, if it is of a criminal nature, in the infliction of punishment on the party found guilty. In any action or proceeding to enforce a provision of sections 1977, 1978, 1979, 1980 and 1981 of the Revised Statutes [42 USCS §§ 1981-1983, 1985, 1986], title IX of Public Law 92-318 [20 USCS §§ 1691 et seq.], or in any civil action or proceeding, by or on behalf of the United States of America, to enforce, or charging a violation of, a provision of the United States Internal Revenue Code [26 USCS §§ 1 et seq.], or title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [42 USCS §§ 2000d et seq.], the court, in its discretion, may allow the prevailing party, other than the United States, a reasonable attorney's fee as part of the costs.

Amendment 14: Section 1. Citizens of the United States.

All persons born or naturalized in the United States, and subject to the jurisdiction thereof, are citizens of the United States and of the State wherein they reside. No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.

V. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a final "Ruling and Order of Judgment" denying plaintiffs' motion for the entry of judgment on their civil rights claim and denying plaintiffs an attorney's fee award. The lower court also denied plaintiffs' motions to join other subdividers as party plaintiffs and plaintiffs' request for costs incurred by the plaintiffs in paying a court-appointed master and a CPA to audit West Jordan's records.

A statement of the facts helpful and relevant to the issues presented for review are as follows:

1. Subdividers John Call and Clark Jenkins (hereafter "Call and Jenkins") sued the respondent City of West Jordan ("City") challenging the City's ordinance requiring subdividers to dedicate seven percent of the proposed subdivision land to the city or to pay the equivalent of the land value in cash. The land or cash was to be used by the city for flood control and/or park and recreational facilities. (R.2-11, 118-121.)

2. The Third Judicial District Court upheld the ordinance and the subdividers appealed. (R. 142,143,144, 151,153.)

3. The Utah Supreme Court, Call v. West Jordan, 606 P.2d 217, (Utah 1979) (hereinafter Call I) affirmed and remanded (R.162-173.) (Copy of case attached as Addendum 1.)

4. On rehearing, the Utah Supreme Court, Call v. West Jordan, 614 P.2d 1257 (Utah 1980) (hereinafter Call II) upheld the constitutionality of the ordinance on its face, but remanded the case to give the subdividers an opportunity to present evidence that the payment required of them did not have any reasonable relationship to the City's needs for flood control or parks and recreational facilities. (R. 401-06, 696-98.) (Copy of case attached as Addendum 2.)

5. Thereafter, the trial court allowed the subdividers to amend their complaint to include claims (1) that the ordinance was invalid because the city did not follow statutory notice and hearing requirements in enacting the ordinance; and (2) a civil rights claim alleging that the subdividers rights to due process were denied by the city's failure to provide the required notice and public hearing. (R.306, 307-19,323,329,339,343.)

6. Thereafter, the City defended against the amended allegations by stating that it had complied with the notice and hearing requirements. (R.1850-55.) The City also alleged it was immune from the civil rights claim. (R.1916, 1919.)

7. On the third appeal, the Utah Supreme Court, Call v. West Jordan 727 P.2d 180 (Utah 1986) (hereafter Call III), upheld the lower court's allowance of the amended complaint. The Utah Supreme Court also ruled that the city failed to comply with the statutory notice and public hearing requirements. Because the City failed to hold a public hearing, with notice, the court held the ordinance was void ab initio. The Utah Supreme Court remanded the case to the lower court to enter judgment consistent with the opinion (R.1843-45.) (Copy of case attached as Addendum 3.)

8. Subsequently, the lower court denied plaintiffs' (1) motion for entry of judgment on plaintiffs' civil rights claim; (2) claim for attorney fees; (3) motion to join other subdividers as party plaintiffs; and (4) motion for costs paid by the plaintiffs for a court-appointed master and an audit of West Jordan's records.

VI. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

West Jordan deprived Call and Jenkins of their procedural rights to due process by failing to provide notice and a public hearing prior to legislating the seven percent impact fee ordinance and prior to taking Call's and Jenkin's money. In Call III, the Utah Supreme Court held that West Jordan failed to provide notice and a public hearing. The lower court erred in failing to enter a judgment in favor of the subdividers on their civil rights claim.

Entering a civil rights judgment in favor of Call and Jenkins was not prohibited by Call III. Rather, such a judgment would be totally consistent with Call III's opinion. Call III ruled that since West Jordan did not hold a public hearing, the seven percent impact fee ordinance was void ab initio and Call and Jenkins were entitled to a judgment.

Because Call and Jenkins are entitled to a § 1983 civil rights judgment against West Jordan, this case should be remanded for consideration of attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

West Jordan violated Rule 11 when it continued to advocate that an August 27, 1974 master plan meeting was the public hearing required by Utah Code Ann. §10-9-25 and procedural due process. That assertion, made in numerous pleadings and documents, was not grounded in fact nor warranted in law. In Call III, the Utah Supreme Court stated:

One's imagination must be stretched beyond rational limits to accept the master plan hearing as satisfying the public hearing requirements.

Call III at 183.

Because West Jordan violated Rule 11, the case should be remanded to the lower court with directions to enter a judgment awarding plaintiffs a reasonable attorney's fee and plaintiffs' costs incurred in paying an accountant and court appointed master to examine West Jordan's books.

call and Jenkins are entitled to have the master's fees taxes as costs because they are the prevailing party and because West Jordan's failure to answer simple interrogatories necessitated the reference. 3A J. Moore & J. Lucas,

Moore's Federal Practice, para. 53.04[1] (2d ed. 1987). For similar reasons, plaintiffs are entitled to a judgment for the cost of their accountant's examination of West Jordan's slip shod records. Andrecikopoulo v. Broadmoor Mgt. Co., 670 P.2d 435 (Colo. App. 1983).

The lower court erred in failing to grant Call and Jenkins's motion to join, as party plaintiffs, other subdividers who paid impact fees. In Call I, the Utah Supreme Court found that the monies and property paid by the subdividers was a trust fund. In Call III the same court held that the impact fee ordinance establishing the trust fund was void from the beginning.

Once the trust failed, only the subdividers had ownership interests in the impact fee trust fund. Persons interested in a trust fund are indispensable parties. Hiltsey v. Ryder, 738 P.2d 1024 (Utah 1987).

VII. ARGUMENT

A. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO ENTER A JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF THE SUBDIVIDERS ON THEIR CIVIL RIGHTS CLAIM

1. Factual and Procedural Background.

After Call II, the trial court allowed Call and Jenkins to amend their complaint to include claims that: (1)

the city did not hold a public hearing prior to enacting the ordinance; and (2) plaintiffs' civil rights were violated by the City's failure to provide the required notice and hearing. (R.306,307-19,323,329,339,343.)

Trial was held on September 1, 2, and November 18 of 1982. At the conclusion of the plaintiffs' evidence, the defendant prior to putting on its case in chief moved to dismiss plaintiffs' complaint. The court granted the defendant's motion to dismiss plaintiffs' complaint, no cause of action. (R.1216-1217, 1492-93.) Plaintiffs appealed.

In Call III, the Utah Supreme Court unequivocally found that there was no notice and there was no hearing and remanded the case to enter judgment consistent with the court's opinion. Call III at 183-184. (See Addendum 3.)

2. Legal Analysis.

The applicable civil rights statute provides:

Every person who under color of any statute, ordinance, regulation custom or usage of any state . . . subjects or causes to be subjected any citizen . . . to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or amenities secured by the constitution and laws, shall be liable to the parties injured in an action at law, suit in equity, or other proper proceeding for redress.

42 U.S.C. § 1983.

The purpose of the civil rights statute is to compensate persons for injury caused by deprivation of constitutional rights. Lavicky v. Burnett, 758 F.2d 468 (10th Cir. 1985).

There are two and only two elements to a cause of action under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, both of which unquestionably exist in this case: (1) a citizen must have been denied a federal right; and (2) the denial must have been under the color of state law. Gomez v. Toledo, 446 U.S. 635, 640 (1980).

It is absolutely clear that the actions of West Jordan in passing the seven percent ordinance and in collecting the fees from the subdividers were actions taken under the color of state law. Monroe v. Pape, 365 U.S. 167, 184 (1961) (misuse of power possessed by virtue of state law made possible only because the wrongdoer is "with the authority of state law"). It is when the execution of a governmental policy or custom, whether made by its lawmakers or by those whose edicts or acts may fairly be said to represent official policy, inflicts the injury, that the government as an entity is responsible under § 1983. Monell v. Dept. of Social Services of New York, 436 U.S. 658, 694 (1978).

The city's collection of the seven percent fee was clearly a deprivation of property within the meaning of the Fourteenth Amendment. Cash is property for due process purposes. Coleman v. Turpin, 697 F.2d 1341 1344 (10th Cir. 1982).

The only remaining issue is whether plaintiff's rights to procedural due process were denied by the city. Timely and adequate notice and an opportunity to be heard in a meaningful way are the very heart of procedural due process. Nelson v. Jacobsen, 669 P.2d 1207, 1211 (Utah 1983).

[E]very significant deprivation whether permanent or temporary of any interest which is qualified as property under the due process clause must be proceeded by notice and opportunity for hearing appropriate to the nature of the case

Worrall v. Ogden City Fire Dept., 616 P.2d 598 (Utah 1980).

In Call III, the Utah Supreme Court unequivocally found that there was no notice and no hearing.

[W]e hold that because the statute calls for a public hearing, our legislature contemplated something more than a regular city counsel meeting held . . . without specific advance notice to the public that the proposed ordinance would be considered.

Call III at 183.

Notice to be effective must alert the public to the nature and scope of the ordinance that is being adopted.

Call III at 183.

One's imagination must be stretched beyond reasonable limits to accept the master plan hearing as satisfying the public hearing requirement The ordinance was not even drafted until months after the master plan public hearing.

Call III at 182.

There is no dispute that West Jordan, acting under color of state law, took \$16,576 of the subdivider's property without notice and without the hearing required by statute and by the due process clause. Thus, West Jordan, undeniably, deprived Call and Jenkins of their procedural rights to due process of law, as protected by the Fourteenth Amendment.

The denial of due process in this case, is analytically similar to the denial of due process in Adler v. Lynch, 415 F.Supp. 705 (D. Neb. 1976). In Adler, the plaintiff received no notice that the zoning variance previously granted to her would be reviewed by the board of commissioners at one of the board's regular meetings. At that meeting, the board rescinded the variance. As a result, the court stated:

It seems clear to the court that the plaintiff has been subjected to a

deprivation of due process of law by being denied proper notice of an opportunity to effectively participate in the proceedings of December 18.

Adler at 711.

The present case is also analytically parallel to Lavicky v. Burnett, 758 F.2d 468 (10th Cir. 1985). In Lavicky, the state seized the plaintiff's pickup truck because it believed some of the parts of the truck were stolen. The court found a violation of the plaintiff's procedural due process rights when the state disposed of the truck without following the statutory procedure for determining ownership of the allegedly stolen property prior to its disposition. Lavicky at 473. In a similar manner, West Jordan violated the plaintiff's procedural due process rights when it required the plaintiff to pay a fee that was not justified because the city had not followed statutory procedures.

The fact that the subdividers received a refund of their money does not redress their procedural due process rights.

[A] deprivation of procedural due process is an independent constitutional tort actionable under § 1983 with or without proof of actual injury.

Burt v. Able, 585 F.2d 613, 616 (4th Cir. 1978); see also Carey v. Phipus, 435 U.S. 247, 266-267 (1978).

In summary, the Utah Supreme Court previously, in this case, found that there was no notice and no public hearing. There is no dispute that West Jordan acted under color of state law when it deprived the subdividers of their \$16,576. The subdividers were entitled to judgment in their favor on their § 1983 civil rights claim.

B. THE CASE SHOULD BE REMANDED FOR
CONSIDERATION OF ATTORNEY FEES
PURSUANT TO 42 U.S.C. § 1988

1. Call and Jenkins are Entitled to Attorney Fees Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

Because the subdividers are entitled to a judgment on their civil rights claim, they are also entitled to have the court consider their claim for attorney fees pursuant to Section 42 U.S.C. § 1988. That section provides that in any action or proceeding to enforce a provision of sections [42 U.S.C. § 1983] the court may, in its discretion, allow the prevailing party other than the United State a reasonable attorney's fee as part of the costs

Even if only nominal damages are recovered, it does not diminish the plaintiff's eligibility for attorney fees under § 1988. Burt v. Able, 585 F.2d 613 (5th Cir. 1978).

The reason the lower court did not consider plaintiff's application for attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988, is because it was under the mistaken impression that it did not have authority under Call III to enter a judgment on a civil rights claim. (Transcript Proceedings, September 11, 1987, pp.16-19, hereafter "T".) (T.pp.16-17.)

In Call III, the Utah Supreme Court stated: "We remand this case to the trial court to enter judgment consistent with this opinion." Call III at 184. When an appellate court remands a case to the trial court, the issues decided upon appeal cannot be acted upon or decided contrary to the way they were decided in the appellate court. However, new issues may be raised so long as they do not cover issues specifically foreclosed by the appellate court. Street v. Fourth Judicial District Court, 113 Utah 60, 191 P.2d 153 (1948). see generally Call v. West Jordan, 727 P.2d 180, 181 (Utah 1986). On remand, the lower court has jurisdiction to take any action as justice may require under the circumstances, as long as it is not inconsistent with the mandate and judgment of the appellate court. Fullerton Lumbar Co. v. Torborg, 80 N.W.2d 461 (Wis. 1957). It is the trial court's duty to rule on issues not ruled upon by the

Utah Supreme Court. Eckard v. Smith, 545 P.2d 501 (Utah 1976).

In this case, the mandate to the lower court was only to enter judgment consistent with the Supreme Court's opinion. Call III at 184. Because the Supreme Court held that the ordinance was invalid for the City's failure to hold a hearing, recovery for violation of procedural due process is not inconsistent with the Supreme Court's mandate. In fact, the finding that the City acted contrary to statutory procedures is elemental to the plaintiff's § 1983 civil rights claim. see Lavicky v. Burnett, 758 F.2d 468 (10th Cir. 1985). The lower court erred when it reasoned that it did not have authority to rule on Call's and Jenkins's due process claim.

In Shapiro Burnstein & Co. v. Jerry Vogle Music Co., 161 F.2d 406 (2nd Cir. 1947), the court used the same language contained in Call III in reversing and remanding a judgment in a copyright infringement action relating to a 1912 copyright. In clarifying its prior opinion, the court noted that it had not discussed any question related to a 1914 renewal of a copyright. However, the remand and mandate did not bar the district court from reconsidering an

initial ruling on the 1914 renewal. Explaining the lower courts' powers on remand, the appellate court stated:

We reversed the judgment, remanding the case for entry of a judgment consistent with this opinion. This permits the district judge to enter any judgment which he thinks is consistent with our opinion. He may consider whether the 1914 version was a joint work or a new work and whether the principals enunciated with respect to the 1912 version are likewise applicable to the 1919 version.

Similarly, the Utah Supreme Court permitted the lower court to enter any judgment consistent with Call III. The court could and should have considered whether the City's failure to hold a hearing deprived Call and Jenkins of their constitutional rights to due process. There is no requirement for the Utah Supreme Court to specifically tell the lower court to enter judgment on the civil rights claim. Rather, the lower court was required to consider all issues not ruled upon on the appeal and to enter a judgment consistent with the Supreme Court's opinion. Under these facts, the lower court erred when it ruled it could not enter judgment on the civil rights claim because the Utah Supreme Court had not specifically ordered the lower court to do so. This court should remand the case to the trial judge to

enable him to exercise his discretion on the attorney's fee application.

C. PLAINTIFFS ARE ENTITLED TO ATTORNEY
FEES PURSUANT TO U.R.C.P. 11

1. Factual Background.

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