1988

John Call and Clark Jenkins v. City of West Jordan, Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Plaintiffs' counsel---openly admitting before Judge Brian that his motion (to have the Court enter judgment on the "civil rights violations" claims) is for the purpose of increasing his attorney's fees---asserts that this Court may enter judgment on issues outside of the scope of the Supreme Court's directive. With such an assertion the Defendant must strongly disagree. Not only does that run counter to the clearly-expressed direction of the Supreme Court, but it runs afoul of well-established legal principles.

In addressing the powers of the trial court in this situation, **Corpus Juris Secundum** at "Appeal and Error", § 1965, notes:

Where, however, the appellate court by its decision and directions **puts an end to the litigation, the lower court is without jurisdiction except to comply with whatever directions are made;** and frequently the directions given on remand impose limitations either as to subject matter or relieve, or both, so that the trial court has power and discretion only within the limitations imposed. **Matters disposed of and determined by the opinion and decision of the appellate court cannot be relitigated in the trial court.** The rule is more explicitly and definitely stated in some cases which hold that, where a case is remanded with specific directions, **the lower court is without power to do anything but carry out the directions,** and the judgment of the lower court entered in conformity with the requirements of the mandate and embodying a complete determination of the rights of the parties exhausts the court's jurisdiction as to matters decided. Thus, **where the appellate court has tried the case de novo, its judgment is final and nothing remains for the trial court to do except enter the judgment.**

Emphasis added. Citations to footnotes omitted.

Section 1966 of "Appeal and Error" in **Corpus Juris Secundum** notes:

On the remand of the cause after appeal, **it is the duty of the lower court to comply with the mandate of the appellate court and to obey the**

directions therein, without variation and without departing from the mandate of the appellate court, even though the mandate may be or is supposed to be erroneous. Accordingly, the trial court commits error if it fails to follow the directions of the appellate court.

Emphasis added. Citations to footnotes omitted.

In § 1967 of "Appeal and Error" in *Corpus Juris Secundum* the following statement is made:

After a cause has been determined on appeal and remanded, **the lower court is ordinarily without power to open, vacate, or modify the judgment of the appellate court, or to alter, extend, or relieve from precise fulfillment of, a specific condition on which the effect of the appellate judgment is made to depend.**

Likewise, after affirmance on appeal, except as directed by the appellate court, the lower court is generally without power to vacate, alter, or modify the judgment originally entered by it, except, perhaps, as to matters not considered on appeal. **Likewise, the trial court generally does not have power to open, vacate, or modify a judgment or decree entered by it in strict conformity to the mandate of the appellate court, without obtaining the consent of the appellate court.**

Emphasis added. Citations to footnotes omitted.

Utah case law is consistent with these principles. In *O'Gara vs Findlay*, 7 Utah 2d 218, 321 P.2d 953 (1958), the Utah Supreme Court wrote:

When a judgment of a lower court is affirmed by the highest court of that particular jurisdiction, such affirmance is deemed conclusive of all issues which were raised or which might have been raised on appeal. The necessity of such a ruling is apparent in the prevention of piecemeal appeals. **Once a matter has been heard, with opportunity for consideration of all relevant issues, there is merit in bringing it to rest. Litigation must come to an end in order that the parties can know with certainty their status.**

321 P.2d at 953-954. Emphasis added.

In **Powerine Company vs Zions Savings Bank and Trust Company**, 148 P.2d 807 (Utah 1944), the trial court---following remand on appeal---made new findings of fact and conclusions of law. Because those new findings were "at variance" with the Supreme Court's earlier decision, one of the parties again appealed. The Supreme Court noted that "no new determination should have been made by the trial court, except by way of entering findings to conform to the previous opinion." 148 P.2d at 808. The Utah Supreme Court then continued:

. . . For as said in **Kelsch v. Dickson**, 71 N.D. 430, 1 N.W..2d 347, 349:

"However wise a man may be, however sound his judgment and understanding, nevertheless, he is bound to subordinate to the wisdom, judgment, knowledge and understanding of a superior court, whose order is the law of the case, until modified, or until reversed by higher authority.

Our pronouncements are the law of the case, binding not less upon us than upon the lower court. We therefore shall not review them.

148 P.2d at 808. Emphasis added.

In **Street vs Fourth Judicial District Court**, 191 P.2d 153 (Utah 1948), the Utah Supreme Court observed:

As a general rule, where a judgment or decree is affirmed or reversed and remanded with directions to enter a particular judgment, the trial court may not permit amended or supplemental pleadings to be framed to try rights already settled. This rule is not only reasonable, but necessary, if litigation is ever to come to an end. After an appellate court has once ruled upon issues presented to it, such ruling becomes the law of the case, and the trial court is bound to follow it, even though it considers the ruling erroneous.

191 P.2d at 158. Emphasis added. Citation to authority omitted.

In Fourth District Court, supra, the Court quoted at length from Justice Hanson in the case of *Utah Copper Company vs District Court*, 91 Utah 377, 64 P.2d 241:

The rule is well established and there does not seem to be anything to the contrary that when a case has been determined by a reviewing court and remanded to the trial court, the duty of the latter is to comply with the mandate of the former. The mandate is binding on the lower court and must be strictly followed and carried into effect according to its true intent and meaning as determined by the directions given by the reviewing court. . . . The lower court upon remand of a case from a higher court must obey the mandate or remittitur and render judgment in conformity thereto and has no authority to enter any judgment not in conformity with the order. Whatever comes before and is decided and disposed of by the reviewing court is considered as finally settled and the inferior court to which a mandate issues is bound by the decree as the law of the case and must carry it into execution according to the mandate, and after the reviewing court has determined the case before it and remanded it to the lower court, the latter is without power to modify, alter, amend, set aside, or in any manner disturb or depart from the judgment of the reviewing court; that the judgment of the reviewing court is not reviewable in any way by the court below and the lower court cannot vary or examine the decree of the higher court for any other purpose than execution, or give any other or further relief or review it even for apparent error upon any matter decided on appeal, or meddle with it further than to settle so much as has been remanded.

191 P.2d at 157. Emphasis added.

WHAT THE SUPREME COURT HAS DECIDED AND WRITTEN, IT HAS DECIDED AND WRITTEN. The trial court has no authority to add to or take away from that decision. Similarly, the Utah Court of Appeals has no authority to modify, or even review, that decision. Judge Brian carefully considered the Call III decision; he, after an almost exhausting series of "hearings"

and motions from Plaintiffs' counsel, dictated the "form" of the judgment, to be "consistent with" the **Call III** decision. His decision should be affirmed.

II

PLAINTIFFS ARE PRECLUDED FROM LITIGATING AND APPEALING THE ALLEGED "CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATION"

The Plaintiffs assert that the "Judgment" be "expanded" to include recovery for an alleged, but unproved, "civil rights violation". The Plaintiffs' are not entitled to such as a matter of law. The material facts necessary for such a judgment are not only in dispute, but have been already decided adversely to the Plaintiffs!

In 1977 the Plaintiffs owned land outside the city limits of West Jordan. The Plaintiffs voluntarily applied for annexation to the City, which was effected in 1977. The Plaintiffs thereafter applied for approval to develop the Wescall subdivision. They received such approval and paid the flood-control impact fee. At the time of payment no "protest" was filed against the assessment of the impact fee. [The dismissal of the Plaintiffs' claims before the Defendant was required to present its defense case-in-chief precluded receiving testimony from the named-plaintiffs on this issue.]

When the case was actually tried before Judge Dee in November 1982, the Plaintiffs presented absolutely NO EVIDENCE as to any "civil rights violation." The Plaintiffs did not even testify and were not even present for the trial!

At the conclusion of the presentation of the Plaintiffs' evidence, the City moved to dismiss the Plaintiffs' claims. After thorough consideration of the matter, Judge Dee granted the motion to dismiss: he ruled that the Plaintiffs had failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence any of their claims. Judge Dee later entered extensive "Findings of Fact" and "Conclusions of Law". Although Plaintiffs objected to those "findings" and "conclusions", at no time did the Plaintiffs suggest additional "findings" concerning any "civil rights violation" issues. Indeed, there could be no such "finding", as Plaintiffs' sole witness was Mr Sharkey, an accountant whose testimony could be reduced to a single sentence: that he could not figure out what the City did with the impact fees monies received from developers, including the Plaintiffs.

Plaintiffs could have "briefed" and "argued" the alleged "civil rights violation" theory. They didn't---either in the trial court or in the Utah Supreme Court. [See Attachment "E" to this brief.] Even in the "petition for rehearing" no mention was made of the alleged "civil rights violation". Thus, the ruling of the Supreme Court in Call III must stand. The "doctrine of the law of the case" prevents a re-examination of issues already examined and decided adversely to the Plaintiffs! In Call III the Utah Supreme Court made no mention of "civil rights violation".

Not only was there absolutely no proof or other evidence presented at the trial, there was no showing that the City was---in 1977, when the "civil rights violation" allegedly occurred---subject to "civil rights liability" under 42 U.S.C.

§ 1983. Indeed, under the prevailing case law at the time, a municipality was not a "person" which could violate the "civil rights" of a person. **Monroe vs Pape**, 365 U.S. 167 (1961). It was not until 1978---one year after the Plaintiffs paid their impact fees---that the United States Supreme Court reversed the **Monroe vs Pape** decision and declared that a municipality was a "person" for purposes of §1983 liability. **Monell vs Department of Social Services**, 436 U.S. 659 (1978). Plaintiffs have made absolutely no showing that **Monell** was to be applied "retroactively."

It is not a "civil rights violation" merely because someone pays an impact fee---not even "under protest"---and then FOUR YEARS LATER (in 1981) first raises the claim of a "civil rights violation" (which was not even proved) and then NINE YEARS AFTER the fee was paid, the Supreme Court declares---on the basis of only part of the evidence presented and not upon a complete presentation of the City's defense---that the ordinance, under which the fees were paid, was invalidly adopted.

No one made the Plaintiffs annex into West Jordan; they did so voluntarily so they could make use---for their own economic and business profit---of the available infrastructure (roads, services and utilities) within the City. If the Plaintiffs really thought their "civil rights" were being "violated" by payment of the fee, Why did the Plaintiffs wait for FOUR YEARS to even raise the issue of the alleged "civil rights" violation?

It is perhaps understandable why Plaintiffs' counsel (as contrasted from Plaintiffs themselves) wants to have a "civil rights violation" judgment: arguably under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 1988, the Plaintiffs would be thus entitled to an award of attorney's fees.

III

AN AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1988
IS IMPROPER BECAUSE PLAINTIFFS DID NOT PREVAIL
ON THE "CIVIL RIGHTS CLAIM"

The flaw in Plaintiffs' claim for award of attorney's fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 is that, as shown above, the Plaintiffs did not prevail in their assertion of a civil rights violation.

IV

THE DEFENDANT DID NOT CONDUCT
ITS DEFENSE IN "BAD FAITH" SO AS TO JUSTIFY
AN AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES

Plaintiffs claim that the award of attorney's fees should be awarded by reason of the Defendant's alleged "bad faith" (a Rule 11 violation) for having claimed that a "public hearing" was held.

The flaw in Plaintiffs' analysis is that the conclusion of the Utah Supreme Court on that issue is not, per se, evidence of the Defendant's (or its counsel's) "bad faith": it is certainly well nigh to impossible to predict how the Utah Supreme Court will rule on an issue.

In this context, it must be remembered that THE TRIAL COURT FOUND THAT A "PUBLIC HEARING" WAS HELD. Thus, the holding of the "public hearing" was not merely the unsubstantiated assertion of counsel; it was a "finding" of the trial court.

And further, one must remember that such a determination of the trial court was on the basis of only a part of the evidence available to the Defendant. [When Judge Dee had ruled that the Defendant (City) had complied with Judge Rigtrup's pre-trial order" (concerning evidence of the "public hearing"), he ruled that the City need not put on additional evidence. In this regard, it is significant to note that the Supreme Court's ruling (In Call III) thus was (1) based upon only a partial quantity of the evidence and (2) precluded the City from presenting its case-in-chief. This anomalous result was unsuccessfully pointed out to the Utah Supreme Court in the Defendant's petition for rehearing.]

And one must also remember that it was the Plaintiffs who, in April 1987, obtained a writ of mandamus from the Utah Supreme Court preventing the re-opening of the Defendant's case. The Plaintiffs cannot have "their cake and eat it too".

The mere fact that the Plaintiffs "win" does not mean that the Defendant conducted its defense "in bad faith."

That the Utah Supreme Court would interpret "public hearing" differently does not establish the Defendant's "bad faith". The significant factor is that THE TRIAL JUDGE DETERMINED THERE HAD BEEN A PUBLIC HEARING. The Defendant can hardly be faulted when the trial court makes such a finding.

Furthermore, the Defendant was precluded from presenting its entire case in chief. The Defendant's preliminary presentation was never intended to constitute the entire case-in-chief of the City. Indeed, Judge Dee recognized this when he allowed (January 1987) the Defendant to re-open the case to present its case-in-chief.

Judge Dee's dismissal of the Plaintiffs' claims at the conclusion of the presentation of Plaintiffs' evidence PRECLUDED the City from having its full "day in court" on this issue and the full litigation of Section 10-9-25.

The testimony presented by the Defendant concerning the public hearing was merely in compliance with the Court's pre-trial order. Judge Dee repeatedly ruled that the City had complied with its pre-trial order. He stated:

. . . I have already ruled on the question whether I thought he's complied with Judge Rigtrup's order, and I think he has, . . .

Record at 1711-1712. Emphasis added.

In Call III the Supreme Court ruled that no "public hearing" had been held and directed that judgment be entered against the City. It is highly unusual that the Supreme Court would so rule and thus totally dispose of the legal issues, without giving the Defendant the opportunity to fully present its case-in-chief, when the trial court repeatedly found there was compliance with that pre-trial order. [The correct procedure would have been to remand the case for presentation of the City's case-in-chief.]

In any event, the finding of the trial court (Judge Dee) that a public hearing had been held viciates any and all claims that the Defendant's defense was asserted or maintained "in bad faith". The fact that the Supreme Court---contrary to principles of the "law of the case" and its clear direction in **Call II** as to the issues to be tried---allowed, over the Defendant's objection, consideration of other issues certainly could not have been reasonably expected. The fact that the Supreme Court would totally dispose of the issue, without receiving the entire quantum of evidence available and without giving the Defendant an opportunity to present its case-in-chief, could not have been expected.

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